
 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 9, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

December 9, 2015 
Closed Session 6:30 PM  ·  Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 

 

 

1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
1A. Call to Order 
1B. Roll Call 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Public employee performance evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 54957  
Title: City Manager 

2) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
2A. Pledge of Allegiance 
2B. Report from Closed Session 
2C. Roll Call 
2D. Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

3) PRESENTATIONS_                                        _______________________________________________________ 
3A. Presentation Honoring Fire Chief Chris Paulus upon his Retirement 
4) CONSENT CALENDAR_________ ___________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a 
roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request specific items to be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed will be considered after the motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
4A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of November 18, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 18, 2015. 
4B. Cash Summary Report November 2015 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File 
4C. Sales and Use Taxes Analysis 
 RECOMMENDATION:  For information only  
4D. Renewal of City of Colfax as a Recycling Market Development Zone 

RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 43-2015 Supporting the Renewal of the County of Placer 
Recycling Market Development Zone (RMDZ). 

4E.  Contract with Mark Thomas, Inc. for Feasibility Analysis for Traffic Mitigation Alternative 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 44-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Consulting 
Services Agreement on behalf of the City with Mark Thomas, Inc. in the amount not to exceed $11,000. 

4F. Council Assignments for 2016 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review Current City Council Committee Assignments; Review and Approve 
Assignments for 2016. 

4G. Landfill Non-water Corrective Action Plan Pledge of Revenue 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:   Mark Miller 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 45-2015 Designating Signatory Authority for the CalRecycle 

Pledge of Revenue Document to the City Manager.







City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes November 18, 2015 
 

Foxey McCleary asked for more details about the parade which will be hosted by the 
Lion’s Club and will be free of charge.  Meet on South Auburn and Oak.  It is not necessary 
to register a parade entry, but it would be nice to let the organizers know if you are 
planning to be in the parade. 
Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that Santa Claus would be taking pictures with children 
from 4:00-6:00PM. 
Councilmember Hesch thanked the organizers for their hard work.  It promises to be an 
exciting evening. 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes City Council Meeting of October 28, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 18, 
2015. 

4B. Cash Summary Report 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File. 

4C. Whitcomb Avenue Fair Share Agreement – Parcel F 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and Approve. 
 

Councilmember Hesch pulled the minutes from the Consent Calendar. 
On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
approved Items 4B and 4C of the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch Parnham, Stockwin 
Councilmember Hesch amended his statement from the last meeting.  During his Council 
Report (Item 5A of the November 18 Meeting) he had intended to request doubling the 
donation made by the City for the Winterfest Event from $500 to $1,000, not from $500 to 
$5,000.  It has turned out not to be feasible to increase the donation and remained at 
$500. 
On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the City 
Council approved the Minutes of the November 18, 2015 meeting. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch Parnham, Stockwin 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Hesch 
 Councilmember Hesch sat on the Air Quality Board selection panel for interviews 

for a new director. 
 He requested that Sergeant Conners address comments and concerns from the 

public regarding the “dumping of convicts” in Colfax. 
 

Councilmember Stockwin 
 Councilmember Stockwin attended the Mosquito Abatement meeting in place of 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham.  Spraying for mosquitos normally ends in October, but 
with the warm weather spraying went into November. 

 He brought an article from the Sacramento Bee to the attention of Council.  The 
article dealt with disposal of description drugs.  One authority is advocating just 
flushing the drugs into the sewer systems.  Councilmember Stockwin warned that 
this is a dangerous policy which will increase sewer regulations and increased 
sewer bills. 



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes November 18, 2015 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 
 Mayor Pro Tem Parnham will need to resign from the Mosquito Abatement Board 

due to his job change. 
 He agreed with Councilmember Stockwin that flushing into the sewer system is 

not the proper disposal for prescription drugs.  He noted that Placer County has a 
daily drug takeback site at the landfill. 
 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Councilmember Harvey suggested that the City consider asking the Colfax Record 

to run an article regarding the issue of safely disposing medications. 
 

Mayor Douglass 
 Mayor Douglass attended the SEDCorp meeting.  SEDCorp is restructuring in hopes 

of funding more business loans to local businesses. 
 He attended the November 6 Colfax High School football game. 
 He participated in the November 7, 8 College of the Arts workshop. 
 The local schools each had impressive Veterans Day Celebrations. 

 

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  
 City Manager Miller announced that the state will be dedicating the new STAA 

truck route soon.  More details will follow. 
 The City of Colfax no longer has an underground storage tank (UST) onsite at the 

Corporation Yard so that regulatory oversight has been eliminated. 
 CalFire has finished their brush clearing efforts on Beacon Hill above downtown. 
 The Laundromat is under new ownership.  The new owners are excited about 

Colfax being “up and coming” and they are looking for other potential business 
opportunities in town. 

 Beach Hut Deli pulled their initial building permit and expect to open in 3 months. 
 Two new wastewater treatment plant operators, Chris Clardy and Jane May have 

been hired. 
 The City has contract crews repairing some of the road cracks throughout town. 
 Caltrans will be cutting branches from several trees along the I-80 corridor and 

leaving the limbless trunks.  Caltrans is tasked with fuel reduction without 
disturbing soils or bird nesting.  The trunks will be removed after the snowmelt 
next spring. 
 

5C. Additonal Reports – Agency Partners 
Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol (CHP) Public Information Officer 
Officer Nave was not able to attend the meeting and requested that City Clerk Cassidy 
read the following report. 
 CHP currently has a big push to curb distracted driving through enforcement. 
 The CHP is training all officers to more effectively deal with persons with mental 

health issues. 
 Thanksgiving is a maximum enforcement period. 
 The CHP is sponsoring the Chips for Kids program.  Citizens can make donations of 

toys or cash at various locations. 
 









City of Colfax 7 
City Council Minutes November 18, 2015 
 

City Manager Miller responded that the system is installed but is a water system and 
cannot be used without heating the building to avoid freezing the pipes. 
Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that the owners are not taking the City seriously and the 
process needs to be accelerated.  The building has been derelict for 35 years.  It needs to 
be fixed up or torn down. 
Mayor Douglass concurred that the abatement has been going on too long.  The owners 
are almost making a mockery of the City.  The abatement must go to the next level. 
City Manager Miller will confer with the City Attorney and draft a stronger letter to give 
notice to the owner. 
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Honorary Mayor Fick called for a motion 
to adjourn. 
On a motion by Mayor Douglass, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, Council called for 
adjournment. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
Honorary Mayor Fick adjourned the meeting at 8:50PM. 
Councilmember Hesch thanked Mr. Fick for doing a great job of being Honorary Mayor. 
(general applause) 
 
Respectfully submitted to City Council this 9th day of December, 2015. 
 

 
 

 





2 of 10



































2 

 Impacts Existing Businesses 

 Emergency Response 

 Driveway and access locations to the new development. 

 Required construction costs. 

 Necessary approvals (i.e. Caltrans). 

 Environmental clearance and design costs.  

The estimated fee to prepare this memorandum is $10,000. 

The total anticipated fee for both tasks is $11,000. The anticipated schedule for completion is as 
follows. 

 Initial Concepts Developed/Draft Memo Complete – 8 weeks after Notice to Proceed. 

 Meeting with City and Developer – 10 weeks after Notice to Proceed. 

 Final Concepts/Memo Complete – 12 weeks after Notice to Proceed. 

We are looking forward to working with you on the delivery of this project, and if you have any 
questions please feel free to give me a call.  

Sincerely, 

 

Matt Brogan 
Principal/Division Manager - Sacramento 

 

ITEM 4E



Page 1 of 3 

 

  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN  

CITY OF COLFAX 

AND  

MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC.  

 

 
This AGREEMENT made and entered into this ________________, by and between the City of 

Colfax, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT," and Mark Thomas & Company, Inc., 1960 Zanker Road, San 

Jose, California 95112, hereinafter referred to as "CONSULTANT." 

 

 R E C I T A L S 
 

A. CLIENT desires certain professional consultant services hereinafter described in connection with   

the S. Auburn Traffic Mitigation Alternative Feasibility Analysis. 

 

B. CLIENT desires to engage CONSULTANT to provide these services by reason of its qualifications 

and experience for performing such services and CONSULTANT has offered to provide the required 

services on the terms and in the manner set forth herein. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The scope of services to be performed by CONSULTANT under this agreement is as described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.   
 

Additional Services:  Any services not specifically provided for herein shall be Additional Services.  Only 

if mutually agreed to in writing by client or consultant shall consultant perform such additional services. 

 

 SECTION 2 - DUTIES OF CONSULTANT 

 

CONSULTANT represents that it is qualified to furnish the services described under this agreement.   

Consultant’s primary contact for this contract shall be: 
 

Name : Matt Brogan 

Phone No.:  (916) 381-9100  
RCE No.   _____ ____________  

 

 

CONSULTANT shall be responsible for employing or engaging all persons necessary to perform the 

services of CONSULTANT. 

 

 SECTION 3 - DUTIES OF CLIENT 

 

CLIENT shall provide pertinent information regarding its requirements for the project. 

 

CLIENT shall examine documents submitted by CONSULTANT and shall render decisions pertaining 

thereto promptly, to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of CONSULTANT'S work. 

 

ITEM 4E



Page 2 of 3 

 

 SECTION 4 - TERM 

 

The services to be performed under this agreement shall commence immediately and be completed on 

or around February 2016.   Neither party shall be responsible for delays from causes beyond their reasonable 

control. 

 

 SECTION 5 - PAYMENT 

 

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT a maximum fee not to exceed $11,000 on a time and material basis in 

accordance with the attached Exhibit B – Charge Rate Schedule.  CLIENT shall make payment for services 

rendered upon submittal of a monthly time and material invoice. 

 

 SECTION 6 – INDEMNITY 

 

CONSULTANT agrees to hold harmless and indemnify CLIENT, its officers and employees from and 

against any and all claims, loss, liability, damage, and expense to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors 

and omissions of the CONSULTANT. 

 

 SECTION 7 - INSURANCE 

 

The CONSULTANT shall provide and maintain: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, occurrence form, with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 

each occurrence and aggregate. 

 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance, occurrence form, with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each 

occurrence.  Such insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles. 

 

C. Workers Compensation in at least the minimum statutory limits. 

 

D. Errors and omissions insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per claim and aggregate. 

 

 SECTION 8 - NON-ASSIGNABILITY 

 PERSONAL SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

 

Both parties hereto agree that this agreement cannot be transferred, assigned, or subcontracted by 

either party without the prior written consent of the other party. 

 

 SECTION 9 - MEDIATION 

 

In an effort to resolve any conflicts or disputes that arise regarding the performance of this agreement, 

the Client and Consultant agree that all such disputes shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, using a 

mutually agreed upon mediation services experienced in the resolution of engineering and construction 

disputes.  Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, such mediation shall be a pre-condition to the initiation 

of any litigation.  It is further agreed that any dispute that is not settled pursuant to such mediation shall be 

adjudicated in a court trial in a court of competent jurisdiction sitting without a jury.  The parties hereby 

mutually agree to waive any right to a trial by jury regarding any dispute arising out of this agreement. 

 

 

 

SECTION 10 - TERMINATION 
 

ITEM 4E
6 of 7





2015 Committee Assignment List (DRAFT 12-09-2015) 

 

Committee Councilmember 
Community Member 

Meeting Date and Time 
Mileage 

Reimbursement 
Stipend 

Placer County Economic Development Board 
Meetings at Various Businesses in Placer Co. 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

3:00 pm  

3rd Thursday 

Jan/April/June/Sept 

Submit to City None 

Weimar, Applegate, Colfax/Municipal 
Advisory Council (WAC/MAC) 
City of Colfax, Council Chambers 

Will Stockwin 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

6:00 pm  

3rd Wednesday of Month 

Submit to City None 

Sierra Economic Development Corporation 
(SEDCorp) 

560 Wall Street, Suite F, Auburn, CA 95603 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

1:00 pm  

1st Wednesday EOM starting 

February 

Submit to Board None 

Sacramento Area Council of Governments 
(SACOG) 

1415 L. St. Sacramento, CA 95814 

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Kim Douglass 

9:30 am  

3rd Thursday of Month 

Submit to Board $100 

Grants Oversight Committee 
(approves change orders over $5,000) 

Tom Parnham 

Kim Douglass 

As Needed Submit to City  

Placer County Air Pollution Control District 
BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA  

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

 2:30 pm  

2nd ¢ƘǳǊǎŘŀȅ ƻŦ ŜǾŜƴ ІΩŘ 

months 

Submit to Board $100 

Placer Mosquito & Vector Control District 
2021 Opportunity Dr. Roseville, CA 95678 

Will Stockwin 

No Alternate for this Board  

4:30 pm  

3rd Monday of Month 

Submit to City $100 

Project Go 
801 Vernon St, Roseville 

Kim Douglass 

Alternate: Tony Hesch 

5:30 pm 

Third Thursday 

 

Submit to Committee None 

Placer County Transportation Planning Agency 
(PCTPA) 

BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA  

Tony Hesch 

Alternate: Steve Harvey 

9:00 am  

4th Wednesday of Month 

Submit to Committee $100 

Local Agency Formation Commission 
BOS Chambers 

175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn, CA 95603 

Kim Douglass  

Alternate:  Vacant 

4:00 pm  

2nd Wednesday of Month 

Submit to City $100 

ITEM 4F
1 of 2













5 of 15





















 

 

 

 

 

December 10, 2015 

 

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
Financial Assurances Unit 
P.O. Box 4025 
Sacramento, California 95812-4025 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Certification for the Pledge of Revenue for the Non-water Corrective Action Plan of the City of Colfax 

Closed Landfill 

The City of Colfax is submitting the subject certification for the City of Colfax Closed Landfill, Solid 

Waste Facilities Permit No. 31-AA-0560.  The City of Colfax is the owner of the City of Colfax Closed 

Landfill and retains responsibility for the non-water corrective action plan.  On December 10, 2015, the 

City of Colfax issued the first cost estimate for the non-water corrective action plan for the Closed 

Landfill. Submittal of the enclosed pledge of revenue for the non-water corrective action plan of the 

City of Colfax Closed Landfill completes all required documentation for this closed landfill. 

If you have any questions concerning this submittal or related matters, please contact me. 

Regards, 

 

Mark Miller 
City Manager, City of Colfax 
 

15 of 15





2 

 

Essential functions/duties include: 

 Ensure testing, compliance and documentation of apparatus and (Pump, hose, and ladder 
inspections, SCBA maintenance, Compliance inspections, Annual vehicle maintenance, etc.) 

  Pre-fire planning 

 Target hazard analysis 

 Fuels mitigation notification and follow up 

 Applicable code enforcement 

 Volunteer application administration 

 Training Coordinator ς maintaining records and verifications 

 Personnel administration including direct supervision of volunteers and resident fire fighters 

 ISO survey data collection and maintenance 

 Fire hydrant flow and test records collection and maintenance 

 Fiscal management: budget preparation and purchasing 

 Other administrative functions as needed. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends that City Council adopt Resolution 46-2015 - Approving the Job Description for 
Administrative Fire Captain and Authorizing the City Manager to Fill the Position upon the recommendation 
of the Colfax Fire Chief. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 46-2105 
2. Job Description 













 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 9, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Ty Conners, Cofax Substation Commander 
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: December 3, 2015 
SUBJECT: Proposed Location for a Colfax Skate Park 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  up to $11,000 FROM FUND:  200 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 47-2015 Authorizing a Fundraising Drive for a Portable 
Skate Park located Adjacent to the Colfax Splash Park. 

 

BACKGROUND:  
Although the area surrounding Colfax is full of outdoor recreational activities, there is not an in-town 
facility for teens to ride their skateboards or bikes in a safe manner without violating City Ordinances.  The 
Sheriff’s Deputies receive numerous complaints regarding youth hanging out downtown, skateboarding 
and bike riding on the sidewalks etc.  As a result, there has been very positive feedback and support from 
the community for a Skate Park.  Many feel a Skate Park built in the City would be beneficial to our youth 
and provide a unique attraction to our community.  A Skate Park would provide a safe environment for 
Colfax youth. It could possibly become a draw to bring more people to Downtown as parents who drive 
their teens to the park very likely would shop or dine while waiting for them to Skateboard.  Skateboard 
Competitions at the Skate Park would also encourage extra visits to town.  
 

Several sites have been proposed for a Skate Park and each has been found not to be feasible. After years 
of considering sites and discussing options, the site next to the Colfax Splash Park seems to be the most 
plausible place to locate the Skate Park.  It could be a great addition to the activities already offered at the 
park: ball field, playground and Splash Park.  One drawback to this location is that it is a little out of the way 
and could allow kids possibly to be more mischievous. This issue would be mitigated by extra Sheriff 
patrols, volunteer involvement, cameras and a safety fence.  
 

The proposed equipment and ramps are portable.  If the City decides to use the site for a different purpose 
in the future, the ramps could be moved and only a minimal removal of concrete would be required.  
Conversely as funding becomes available, more equipment could be added.  Since the structures won’t 
permanent, they can be removed if the kids abuse the privilege of using the Park.  
  

The budget for building the park is not set but anticipated costs are around $100,000, most of which will be 
contributed through fundraising and sponsors.   Some corporations and sponsors have already indicated an 
interest in participating, but will not commit without a location decision by Council. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends City Council Adopt Resolution 47-2015 – Authorizing Fundraising for a Skate Park to be 
Located Adjacent to the Colfax Splash Park. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 47-2105  2.    Sample Equipment portfolio 

1 of 3





LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box

LorraineCassidy
Text Box




	00A 151209 Agenda
	04A 151118 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary Report November
	2016-05 Staff Report Cash Summary Nov 2015
	151209 Cash Summary Data

	04C Sales Tax Analysis
	2015-12-09 SR Sales Tax Analysis
	151209 Sales Tax Analysis Data

	04D Recycling Market Development Zone Renewal
	RMDZ rpt 12-9-15
	RMDZ reso 12-09-15

	04E Feasibility Mark Thomas CSA
	2015-12-09 SR Mark Thomas feasibility consult
	Resolution 44-2015 Roundabout Feasibility Study CSA Mark Thomas
	Letter Colfax Roundabout 8-28-15
	Master Agreement MTCo Client

	04F 151209 Committee Assignments
	04G Landfill Non-water Corrective Action Plan
	151209 SR NWCAP Pledge of Revenue 
	Resolution 45-2015 NWCAP Pledge of Revenue Resolution 12.9.2015
	Non-water Corrective Action Plan 2015
	NWCAP Pledge of Revenue submittal 12.9.2015
	NWCAP Financial Assurance Letter to CalRecycle 12.10.2015

	04H Admin Fire Captain
	151209 SR Administrative Fire Captain Position
	Resolution 46-2015 Colfax Fire Department Administrative Captain
	151209 Job Description-Administrative Captain

	07A Ordinance 527
	151209 Ordinance SR
	151103ah_Ordinance Cover
	151103bh_Ordinance Text

	08B Skate Park
	151209 SR Skate Park Location
	Resolution 47-2015 Skate Park Location and Fundraising Authorization
	Skatepark Examples

	08C 151209 Council Rotation 

	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Text3: City of Colfax
	Text5: Mark Miller
	Text6: P.O. Box 702 Colfax, CA 95713
	Text7: P.O. Box 702 Colfax, CA 95713
	Text8: (530) 346-2313
	Text9: (530) 346-2313
	Text10: (530) 346-6214
	Text11: (530) 346-6214
	Text12: admin@colfax-ca.gov
	Text13: mark.miller@colfax-ca.gov
	Check Box14: Off
	Text17: 
	Check Box15: Yes
	Text18: 393,536.07
	Check Box16: Off
	Text19: 
	Text20:   -2015, December 9, 2015
	Text21: December 9, 2015
	Text22: 
	Text23: Mark Miller
	Text24: City Manager
	Text25: December 9, 2015
	Text26: 
	Text27: City of Colfax Closed Landfill
	Text28: 31-AA-0506
	Text29: 
	Text30: 
	Text31: 
	Text32: 


